
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 


 
Christiansburg Planning Commission 


 Minutes of June 11, 2012 
 
Present: Barry Akers 
  Ann H. Carter 
  Harry Collins 
  M. H. Dorsett, AICP 
  Steve Huppert  
  Craig Moore, Chairperson 
  Ashley Parsons 
  Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson 
  Jennifer D. Sowers 
  Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary Non-Voting 


 
Absent: None 
  
Staff/Visitors:  Kali Casper, staff 


  Wayne Nelson, staff 
  Carol Lindstrom, 630 Depot Street, N.E. 
  Steve Semones, Balzer and Associates, Inc. 
  John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc. 
  Jim Wessel, Showcase Home Builders 
 


 
Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town 
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items: 
 
Chairperson Moore stated that Item Number 3 on the agenda has been withdrawn.   
 
Public Comment 
 


Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.  No public comments were 
made. 
 


Approval of meeting minutes for May 21, 2012. 
 
Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Commissioner Collins made a 
motion to approve the May 21, 2012 meeting minutes.  Commissioner Dorsett 
seconded the motion which passed 9-0. 


 
Planning Commission public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit request by Jason 
Blackburn (agent for property owner Thompson Family Prop., L.L.C.) for a commercial 
garage at 100 Radford Street (tax parcel 526 – ((A)) – 155) in the B-3 General Business 
District.  The Town Council public hearing is set for July 3, 2012. 


 
Chairperson Moore noted that this item has been withdrawn.  







June 11, 2012 Page 2 


 


A Conditional Use Permit request by Carl McNeil for a planned housing development at 
the intersection of Depot Street, N.E. and Harless Street (former tax parcel 497 – ((A)) – 
288; Lots 1-3 in the recently approved “Plat Showing Harless Corner”) in the B-3 General 
Business District.  The Planning Commission public hearing was held May 21, 2012.  The 
Town Council public hearing is set for June 19, 2012. 


 


Chairperson Moore introduced the request.  Chairperson Moore explained that Mr. 
Nelson is present to answer questions concerning drainage.  Commissioner Carter 
asked about a flower wreath with metal marker. Mr. Nelson stated that he has not 
seen it but it is marked on the plat.  Commissioner Powers confirmed that it is on the 
plat.  Commissioner Carter asked if remains are buried there.  Mr. Wingfield stated 
he believes it is a roadside memorial marker.  Commissioner Powers stated that the 
marker is actually within the street right-of-way, not physically on the property.  Ms. 
Lindstrom asked if Mr. Wingfield is sure that it is a roadside marker.  Mr. Wingfield 
stated he cannot confirm with 100% accuracy, but that it appears to be a roadside 
memorial marker.  Commissioner Carter noted the marker has a date of 1957.   
 
Chairperson Moore noted that one concern for this request was drainage along the 
rear of the property. Mr. Nelson stated that from field reconnaissance either the 
system is not there or is buried.  He stated that the Town will need to investigate 
further with a Public Works crew.  Commissioner Powers asked for an explanation of 
the aerial photograph with drainage information.  Mr. Nelson explained that there is 
an inlet at the intersection of Harless Street and Depot Street and that a ditch 
collects water coming down Harless Street.  He noted that engineering was unable 
to determine if the system crossed the street or went further down Depot Street.  
Engineering did not find any culverts or storm drain piping on the side where the 
development is proposed.  Mr. Nelson added that the location is overgrown.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that near North Drive, near the church, there is a storm drain line and 
an open culvert that collects water from above although the range is unknown.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that the Town will need to do maintenance work regardless of this 
request.  Commissioner Powers asked if there is a need for any drainage 
easements.  Mr. Nelson explained that as a subdivision, the development must meet 
water quantity and quality standards.  Chairperson Moore asked if they would need 
to prove downstream channel adequacy.  Mr. Nelson stated that they will need on-
site controls for quantity and quality.  Commissioner Dorsett asked about the ditch 
on Harless Street.  Chairperson Moore noted that there is a ditch and that generally 
it does okay, but occasionally has flooded a yard in heavier rains.  Commissioner 
Dorsett noted that sometimes water comes across Depot Street where Harless 
Street meets it.  Chairperson Moore asked if drainage easement would be needed 
for the Town to perform work.  Commissioner Dorsett suggested a condition that 
developer must work with Engineering Department at Town to create stormwater 
plan and maintain pre-development standards of quality and quantity.  
Commissioner Powers asked if Mr. Nelson has seen the sketch based on 
subdivision plat and Mr. Nelson stated yes.  Commissioner Powers asked if the 
proposed location of units is where natural drainage would come through.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that the engineer preparing the design would have to consider that.  
Commissioner Powers confirmed with Mr. Wingfield that plat has been approved.  
Commissioner Powers asked how the Town will ensure the project meets 
stormwater standards.  Mr. Nelson stated that the Town would require addressing 
the issue in a stormwater plan. 







June 11, 2012 Page 3 


 


A Conditional Use Permit request by Carl McNeil for a planned housing development at 
the intersection of Depot Street, N.E. and Harless Street (former tax parcel 497 – ((A)) – 
288; Lots 1-3 in the recently approved “Plat Showing Harless Corner”) in the B-3 General 
Business District. – (continued) 


 
Commissioner Powers asked what plan he is referring to.  Mr. Nelson stated that the 
developer will have to submit a grading plan and stormwater plan.  Commissioner 
Dorsett would like to make that a condition to underscore the importance.  Mr. 
Nelson noted that meeting the regulations will be a challenge due to size of the 
property.  Chairperson Moore noted that the Commission would like to add a 4th 
condition requiring a stormwater and erosion and sediment control and grading plan, 
prior to issuance of a Building Permit.  Ms. Lindstrom asked if that means it should 
be prior to land disturbing activities and Mr. Nelson stated this was correct.  
Commissioner Powers stated that this is tied to development under the Conditional 
Use Permit. 
 
Commissioner Powers asked about sidewalk extension.  Mr. Nelson noted that this 
will also be a challenge.  Mr. Nelson noted that it will require grading and potentially 
construction of the sidewalk on private property and require a public access 
easement.  Commissioner Dorsett noted presence of sidewalk on Depot Street.  
Commissioner Carter asked if extending the sidewalk on Depot Street is included in 
the conditions.  Chairperson Moore stated yes it should be and that the sidewalk on 
Harless Street is more problematic.  Commissioner Powers asked how far around 
the curve of Harless Street sidewalk needs to be for pedestrian safety.  Mr. Nelson 
estimated that it would need to extend to the right-of-way line.  Chairperson Moore 
stated it would need to be approximately a quarter circle.   
 
Commissioner Collins asked about drainage for the other two lots.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that those lots would not have a large impact, but would still need to control 
stormwater.  Chairperson Moore asked about putting a culvert across Depot Street 
for the lot above this.  Mr. Nelson noted that it will probably be needed anyway.  
Chairperson Moore asked about property directly north of this.  Mr. Nelson noted it 
would be acceptable if that was the only option available.  Mr. Nelson explained that 
these issues are considered during the review process.  Chairperson Moore noted 
that this may end up restricting other property development in the future.  Mr. Nelson 
noted that may be an issue if there is not a drainage easement along the right-of-
way.  Chairperson Moore asked about a 10 to 15 feet easement along the street that 
would be dedicated to the Town.  Mr. Wingfield stated that it could be required.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that it would depend upon final grading plan as to whether it was 
needed.  Chairperson Moore asked if a drainage easement should be required as a 
condition.  Commissioner Powers suggested that drainage easements may be 
required.  Chairperson Moore noted that this will be dependent on Town review.  
Commissioner Powers stated this is to put the developer on notice that it may be a 
requirement. 
 
The fourth condition was drafted as follows:  Stormwater and erosion and sediment 
control plan and grading plan shall be submitted by the applicant and approved by 
the Town prior to the commencement of any land disturbing activities.  Drainage 
easements may be required by the Town. 







June 11, 2012 Page 4 


 


A Conditional Use Permit request by Carl McNeil for a planned housing development at 
the intersection of Depot Street, N.E. and Harless Street (former tax parcel 497 – ((A)) – 
288; Lots 1-3 in the recently approved “Plat Showing Harless Corner”) in the B-3 General 
Business District. – (continued) 
 


The fifth condition was drafted as follows: Sidewalks shall be extended the radius of 
Harless Street to the satisfaction of the Town Manager or Town Engineer.   
 
Chairperson Moore read the other conditions.  Commissioner Powers noted that 
since lots are small, there will be challenges and would like to ensure that developer 
could switch to two lots if desired.  Mr. Wingfield confirmed that they could change to 
two lots.  Commissioner Dorsett made a motion to recommend approval with two 
additional conditions.  Commissioner Parsons second the motion which passed 9-0.   
 
Commissioner Powers asked about what the regulations are on water quantity and 
quality.  Mr. Nelson explained that water quantity and quality are typically combined 
in larger developments.  He stated that with water quantity, the idea is to maintain 
the pre-development rate.  He explained that water quality addresses the quality of 
water that leaves the site and that quality is a new challenging area in development.  
Mr. Nelson noted that there are different methods, including stormwater ponds that 
detain water for pollutants to settle out, bio-retention, basins, and rain gardens that 
allow rain water to filter down through plant life and grass.  He explained that the 
State has requirements according to impervious area on the site and noted that with 
limited impervious areas, grass swales can be used.  Usually, larger sites require 
retention and detention basins.  It will be a challenge to meet standards in limited 
space as well as needing to divert off-site water around your stormwater controls.  
Commissioner Powers noted that the addition of parking in downtown area may 
create a challenge.  Mr. Nelson noted that there are also manufactured controls that 
can be used but require specific maintenance which requires someone to maintain 
the controls on regular basis for them to be effective. 
 


Presentation of Traffic Study for Proposed Development – Farmview Road, N.E.  The 
Planning Commission public hearing was held January 9, 2012 and recommendation 
made on February 13, 2012. The Town Council public hearing was held February 7, 
2012 and approval given on February 21, 2012. 


 
Chairperson Moore introduced the presentation. Mr. Wingfield explained that the 
study was e-mailed to members as well as a letter with the detailing the response 
from the Street Committee.  Mr. Wingfield summarized the study.  The Street 
Committee will not require an additional turn lane at this time and the stop sign at 
Sunset Drive will be reviewed one year after the final Certificate of Occupancy for 
the development.  Commissioner Powers asked about assumptions going into the 
traffic study.  Mr. Semones noted that study considered total number of trips 
generated by the development in terms of level of service and queue length.  He 
explained that three different scenarios were considered:  existing conditions at 
three peak times, 7:00 - 9:00 a.m., 11:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m., and 4:00 – 6:00 p.m.; 
background conditions 5 years out in 2017 using annual growth rate without 
development (from VDOT standards); and with full development of project with 
background conditions in 2017. 







June 11, 2012 Page 5 


 


 
Presentation of Traffic Study for Proposed Development – Farmview Road, N.E.  The 
Planning Commission public hearing was held January 9, 2012 and recommendation 
made on February 13, 2012. The Town Council public hearing was held February 7, 
2012 and approval given on February 21, 2012. – (continued) 


 
Mr. Semones noted that the assumptions were observing intersection with 
background conditions, where the cars are moving and how, and then projecting 
future traffic.  Two access points make future projection of traffic challenging.  Mr. 
Semones noted that one assumption is much of the traffic will head towards 
Blacksburg.  The study assumed that 70% of traffic generated from development will 
be travelling to Blacksburg to the north and of that 70%, half through each direction 
(half through Farmview Road and half through the private access through K-Mart).  
He explained that this projection did not create a failing level of service.  He noted 
that it is critical to monitor the assumptions as development occurs. 
 
The report concluded that an additional turn lane is not required because of the 
development and the additional stop sign not required for the intersection of 
Farmview Road and Sunset at this time as the study does not suggest the queue at 
Farmview Road and N. Franklin Street does not appear to back up to the 
intersection .  Mr. Semones stated that traffic issues will be reported to staff and then 
the stop sign can be considered in the future.  Mr. Semones stated that the study 
was presented to the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) and VDOT 
completed a cursory study because it did not meet VDOT threshold requirements. 
 
Commissioner Huppert asked about the second entrance and exit for construction 
traffic.  Mr. Semones noted that currently heavy equipment will come in through 
Farmview Road, not through the parking lot of K-Mart.  Commissioner Huppert 
asked about when second road will be built.  Mr. Semones stated that Conditional 
Use Permit requires it be built during the first phase.  Commissioner Powers asked 
how long the traffic study took to complete.  Mr. Semones responded that it was 
completed in a couple of weeks.  It was not as long as a full Traffic Impact Analysis 
to VDOT standards but is still time consuming.  Mr. Semones would like information 
and guidance from the Town as a consultant about when traffic studies will be 
required (if VDOT thresholds are not met).  Commissioner Powers asked if it took 
less time since it was an abbreviated study.  Mr. Semones stated that VDOT 
reviewed it outside of the regular review process so it took less time.  Commissioner 
Powers asked if the traffic study was helpful from a staff perspective.  Mr. Nelson 
responded yes.  Commissioner Collins asked if the K-Mart road is State maintained.  
Semones responded no and that the easement runs with the property.  
Commissioner Huppert stated that Roger Woody owns the K-Mart property and Mr. 
Semones stated that this is correct.  Commissioner Powers thanked Mr. Semones 
for the follow up. 







June 11, 2012 Page 6 


 


Presentation of Depot Street Park development, Diamond Hills Park development, and 
Huckleberry Trail extension projects. 


 
Chairperson Moore introduced the topic.  Mr. Wingfield explained that this is coming 
before Planning Commission as an update.  Mr. Wingfield stated that the Town is 
talking with Rosa Peters Playground Board about the trail on their property.  Mr. 
Nelson noted that the Town applied to the Department of Conservation and 
Recreation to improve waters at Depot Street Park but were not awarded the grant.  
Chairperson Moore inquired whether armored gator blocks or natural measures 
would be used and Mr. Nelson responded natural measures to coordinate with the 
walking trail.  Commissioner Dorsett inquired as to why there is not a bridge from the 
Skate Park to the Depot Street Park on the plans.  Mr. Nelson noted that bridge 
locations worked with overall layout and design.  Mr. Neel stated that there is a 
tremendous grade.  Commissioner Powers stated that he would like access outside 
of the Skate Park to Aquatic Center parking.  Mr. Nelson noted that the grade is a 
challenge.  Commissioner Dorsett stated there must be somewhere behind the 
Aquatic Center that would work.   
 
Mr. Neel responded that 100-Year Floodplain is another consideration for design.  
Commissioner Dorsett suggested that the Coal Mining Heritage Park bridge was 
designed for flooding and that it cost $147,000 in 2005 and is longer than this space 
requires.  Commissioner Powers stated it would be a good link to the Huckleberry 
Trail and the necklace of parks to connect through downtown.  Commissioner 
Huppert noted that Dennis Nagel from the Christiansburg Soccer Club was ready to 
give Town of Christiansburg $5,000 to work on the soccer field for Depot Street 
Park.  He added that this was approved by Council and the money should be 
coming.  Commissioner Huppert noted that the budget included $25,000 for Depot 
Street Park for surveying and grading. 
 
Mr. Neel stated that the Town applied for two grants:  a land and water conservation 
grant and a recreational trails grant.  He added that the land and water conservation 
grant was not awarded to the Town, but that the recreational trails grant was still a 
possibility.  The requirements for that grant necessitate a loop trail not point A to 
point B.  Mr. Neel added that the soccer field would be an academy field and 
accommodate travelling teams from Roanoke, Salem, etc.  Commissioner Huppert 
added that some of the land is owned by Kroger and that they would like a 
stormwater pond in conjunction with an easement to use the land.  Chairperson 
Moore asked if there are water and sewer lines on the backside of the property and 
Mr. Nelson responded yes.  Ms. Lindstrom asked how a bridge would work for 
parking and people with strollers.  Chairperson Moore stated that we hope people 
walk.  Commissioner Huppert indicated the existing parking lot on non-Aquatic 
Center (Depot Street) side by the basketball courts could be used for park access.  
Commissioner Huppert added that the playground next to basketball court will likely 
be enlarged and benches added, if the Parks and Recreation budget allows.  
Commissioner Powers stated his interest in tying it in to the Aquatic Center because 
of the parking available when events are going on.  Commissioner Huppert noted 
that the drawing has been around for a year or so.  Ms. Lindstrom asked about the 
possibility of checking with Hubbell on solar lighting.  Mr. Neel responded it is 
possible but the Town must consider maintenance issues.  Commissioner Huppert 
noted that lighting will be needed for basketball area for safety purposes.   







June 11, 2012 Page 7 


 


Presentation of Depot Street Park development, Diamond Hills Park development, and 
Huckleberry Trail extension projects. – (continued) 


 


Mr. Wingfield introduced the Diamond Hills Park project and stated that this project 
would include streambank stabilization and a more passive use trail.  Mr. Nelson 
noted that the Town is currently finalizing the contract with Branch Highways for the 
streambank stabilization.  He added that the purpose of the project is to mitigate a 
project in Wytheville and that the contractor would like to rebuild the channel from 
Independence to Crab Creek rather than pay into the fund.  The plat was prepared 
by Balzer and Associates and part of the project allows for trail alignment and laying 
subgrade.  The Town would then build the trail in the future.  Mr. Nelson stated that 
the Town hopes to build an elevated walkway with educational experiences including 
pictures from existing conditions.  The project reconnects this property to the existing 
floodplain and the area would be planted with landscaping and put into a 
conservation easement (still allowing the trail).  Commissioner Dorsett noted that the 
County has construction plans from the County bridge based on a WPA era 
Northwest Area bridge.   The builder of the County bridge also built Wildwood and 
Bisset Park bridges as well as the Cascades bridges.   
 


Chairperson Moore asked if this helps with the MS-4 program in terms of 
improvements.  Mr. Nelson responded that the project helps address the Crab Creek 
TMDL.  Chairperson Moore stated that this project is a win-win with environment, 
stormwater, and nature.  Commissioner Dorsett asked about ways to deal with runoff 
from paved path near the Cambria Depot.  Mr. Nelson noted that small sites are a 
challenge and does not believe the improvements required a plan.  Commissioner 
Dorsett described problem area.  Mr. Nelson added that this is the challenge that is 
faced with older small sites.  Commissioner Dorsett stated that the area was 
concreted down to the Creek.  Commissioner Powers asked if this is a 
demonstration project.  Mr. Nelson stated that the Town is attempting to take a total 
watershed approach with a more comprehensive view of watersheds.  He added that 
the Town is applying lessons that have been learned and put into practice so future 
generations will not have to deal with the same problems.  Chairperson Moore 
stated that this includes public outreach and education for the MS-4 program.  
Commissioner Parsons asked about the implementation timeframe and maturity 
timeframe.  Mr. Nelson responded that plants that will be purchased in the next 
season so likely two construction seasons.  Parsons asked when plants will reach 
maturity.  Mr. Nelson responded he is not sure. 
 


Mr. Nelson described the phases of the Huckleberry Trail extension, II-A through II-
F.  The bridge across Route 114 will be constructed as part of the Route 114 
widening project and the preconstruction meeting has occurred, so construction 
should begin soon.  Mr. Nelson continued his description of the phases.  He stated 
that phase II-A is a few weeks from advertisement of bid with II-B soon after.  Mr. 
Nelson added that II-C will be built with Town forces, from the Recreation Center to 
Forelmont Street.  Mr. Nelson indicated that a crosswalk, possibly an enhanced 
crosswalk, is planned where II-E and II-B intersect crossing Cambria Street.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that II-F will hopefully include an enhanced crosswalk at 
Independence Boulevard.  Commissioner Dorsett asked about connecting this trail 
to Diamond Hills area.  Mr. Neel responded that it is extremely challenging.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that the Diamond Hills trail system will extend to the end of 
Scattergood Drive, N.W. and tie in. 







June 11, 2012 Page 8 


 


 
Presentation of Depot Street Park development, Diamond Hills Park development, and 
Huckleberry Trail extension projects. – (continued) 


 
Commissioner Powers asked how much has been funded.  Mr. Neel responded that 
all of it is essentially funded through a combination of banked TEA funds ($400,000), 
Renva Knowles Estate (approximately $1 million), and leveraging Renva Knowles 
money for revenue sharing money and Recreational Access Funds.  Commissioner 
Powers asked if it is funded all the way to the High School.  Mr. Neel confirmed that 
it is.  Commissioner Huppert noted that a plaque will be created for Renva Knowles.  
Mr. Neel noted that Renva Knowles money was specifically assigned to bridge and 
as the VDOT Route 114 project unfolded, it was included.  He added that the Renva 
Knowles money can be used for trail extension since VDOT will fund the Route 114 
pedestrian bridge.  Commissioner Huppert noted Councilman Stipes’ involvement.  
Commissioner Powers asked if anything can be done by the Planning Commission 
on this project.  Commissioner Huppert stated he will donate a bench in honor of his 
wife.  Ms. Lindstrom asked about the possibility of camping within Town limits for 
bikers passing through the area.  She added that if the Code prohibited it, it should 
be considered in the future. 


 
 
Other Business 


 
Chairperson Moore noted that at the Town Council meeting comments were made 
on zoning revisions.  He added that one person wished to see a greater reduction in 
downtown parking requirements.  He noted that there was some confusion over the 
Courthouse parking garage.  He added that if renovations were made to the antique 
store, parking requirements would cause problems for development.  There was also 
concern about increasing parking for apartments to 2.5 spaces from 2 spaces 
without consideration for number of bedrooms.  Chairperson Moore noted that this 
was an update on public comments.  He added that meeting minutes and video are 
available from Town Council.  Chairperson Moore thanked the subcommittee for 
working on this and recommending changes.  Commissioner Powers added that it is 
an ongoing process.  Chairperson Moore thanked all attendees.  Commissioner 
Huppert added that the work that has been done for the Huckleberry Trail and Depot 
Park is appreciated.  Chairperson Moore noted that while the Planning Commission 
may want more, what has been done is still appreciated.  


 
 
There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 8:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Craig Moore, Chairperson    Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary Non-Voting 

















Christiansburg Monthly Report 


 


 


 


 


June 2012 


 


 
After two and a half years of service the Christiansburg service has started to stabilize, with no 


major changes to service.  In response, we have


 


Ridership Review 
A total of 2,381 trips were provided on the Christiansburg bus routes in 


information about each route can be found below.


2011, where 2,344 passengers were carried


 


 
  


Report on March 2012 


2012 CHRISTIANSBURG MONTHLY REPORT 


April 2012 Data 


After two and a half years of service the Christiansburg service has started to stabilize, with no 


In response, we have scaled back the analysis of the data


trips were provided on the Christiansburg bus routes in April 2012


about each route can be found below. Overall ridership was very similar to April 


2011, where 2,344 passengers were carried.   


Page 1 


After two and a half years of service the Christiansburg service has started to stabilize, with no 


f the data. 


2012; detailed 


Overall ridership was very similar to April 


 







Christiansburg Monthly Report 


Why do we compare month to month?


variables (such as weather, number of service days, local events, etc) are as similar as possible.  


For example, comparing February to July would give opposite weathe


number of service days.  Comparing different months also doesn’t account for customer travel 


patterns which can change depending on which month customers typically take vacations, the 


weather, or simply whether Virginia Tech is i


 


 


Aquatic Center Ridership 
As requested the chart to the right provides a comprehensive 


review of ridership on the Go Anywhere


Center events.  These numbers are also contained within the 


Go Anywhere ridership chart (above).  Simply put, the chart 


above represents the following equation:  


 


Total Go Anywhere Riders = Go Anywhere + Aquatic Center


 


It is important to note that the service for the Aquatic Center 


is billed separately. 


 


 


 


 


 


Explorer  
A total of 759 passengers rode The 


number of passengers that rode a year ago!


Report on March 2012 


Why do we compare month to month?  It is important to compare month to month so that all 


variables (such as weather, number of service days, local events, etc) are as similar as possible.  


For example, comparing February to July would give opposite weather conditions and a varying 


number of service days.  Comparing different months also doesn’t account for customer travel 


patterns which can change depending on which month customers typically take vacations, the 


weather, or simply whether Virginia Tech is in full service or not.    


 


the chart to the right provides a comprehensive 


Go Anywhere route for Aquatic 


Center events.  These numbers are also contained within the 


ridership chart (above).  Simply put, the chart 


above represents the following equation:   


Total Go Anywhere Riders = Go Anywhere + Aquatic Center 


It is important to note that the service for the Aquatic Center 


passengers rode The Explorer route in April, this was more than double the 


number of passengers that rode a year ago!   


 


Aquatic Center


 Ridership


  


July 


August 


September 


October 


November 


December 


January 


February 


March 


April 


May 


June 


Page 2 


It is important to compare month to month so that all 


variables (such as weather, number of service days, local events, etc) are as similar as possible.  


r conditions and a varying 


number of service days.  Comparing different months also doesn’t account for customer travel 


patterns which can change depending on which month customers typically take vacations, the 


double the 


 


Aquatic Center 


Ridership 


FY 11 FY 12 


515 579 


127   


 


  


    


161 504 


54 23 


 


  


318 319 


1,587  838 


    


1   


21   







Christiansburg Monthly Report 


Explorer Courtesy Stops 


During April, a total of 41 courtesy stops, or stops at locations off


in the last six monthly reports the 


Red Oak Mobile Home Park, with a total of 


March.  Other top stops include deviations to the Par


complex. BT staff will continue to monitor the 


requests to identify if any changes should be made to the Explorer route.


 


Go Anywhere 
 


The Go Anywhere route carried 


Center shuttles this month.   


 


“I need bus service late weeknights and on Saturdays and 


Sunday’s so I can get to my job!  Please expand hours.”


 Explorer


Report on March 2012 


courtesy stops, or stops at locations off-route took place.  


monthly reports the number one request for a courtesy stop continues to be 


Red Oak Mobile Home Park, with a total of 15 requests for April; a further 20 were requested in 


.  Other top stops include deviations to the Park & Ride and to The Bluffs apartment 


BT staff will continue to monitor the courtesy stop locations and the number of 


requests to identify if any changes should be made to the Explorer route. 


route carried a total of 1,177 passengers in April; there were no Aquatic 


“I need bus service late weeknights and on Saturdays and 


Sunday’s so I can get to my job!  Please expand hours.” 


Explorer passenger 


Page 3 


route took place.  As reported 


continues to be the 


April; a further 20 were requested in 


The Bluffs apartment 


ourtesy stop locations and the number of 


April; there were no Aquatic 


 







Christiansburg Monthly Report Report on March 2012 Page 4 


Top 10 Origins & Destinations 
The breakdown between trip purposes is consistent between months.  Employment remains 


the number one trip purpose for the fourth month in a row, it is anticipated that this will 


remain the same in the future.  


 


Examples of trip purpose captured in the “Other” category range from daycare to travel 


arrangements such as meeting the Megabus at the Falling Branch Park & Ride or connecting to 


the Two Town Trolley.   The chart identifying the top 10 origins and destinations can be found 


on the next page. 


 


March Data: 


Trip Purpose Total Number of Trips 


 by Trip Purpose 


Percentage of Total trips  


by Trip Purpose 


Education 222 20% 


Employment 477 42% 


Government Services 28 2% 


Medical 40 4% 


Other 290 26% 


Religious 1 0% 


Shopping 74 7% 


  Total Trips 1,132 100% 


 


April Data: 


Trip Purpose Total Number of Trips 


 by Trip Purpose 


Percentage of Total trips  


by Trip Purpose 


Education 87 9% 


Employment 485 50% 


Government Services 43 4% 


Medical 34 4% 


Other 233 24% 


Religious 1 0% 


Shopping 78 8% 


  Total Trips 961 100% 


“Over all – Everything is just fine.  I thank you all for my times 


and for really saving me money.  Thank you.” 


 Sid Hilton, Go Anywhere passenger 







Christiansburg Monthly Report Report on March 2012 Page 5 


1
736 New River Rd


NRCC entrance at NRV Mall
51 1


400 Technology Drive


Dish Network
105


2
2400 North Franklin Street


Wal-Mart
33 2


736 New River Rd


NRCC entrance at NRV Mall
99


1290 Roanoke Street 3
2400 North Franklin Street


Wal-Mart
50


Red Oak Drive


Residential area opposite Corning
4


1080 Radford Road


Country Kitchen
24


4
Nugget Ridge


Residential area on Radford Street/Route 11
37 5


595 Republic Rd


The Bluffs 
23


Thelma Lane


(Residential area in Cambria)


1 E Main Street


Montgomery County Courthouse


400 Technology Drive


Dish Network


Nugget Ridge


Residential area on Radford Street/Route 11


6
1000 Laurel Street


Kmart
22


100 Independence Blvd


Christiansburg High School


Long Street


Residential area near Depot & Lester


1130 Cambria Northeast


Amelia's Restaurant


Giles Drive


Residential area near Falling Branch


60 Spradlin Farm


Pro Nails


Haymaker Street


Residential area near Roanoke & Park
8


125 Sheltman Street


Christiansburg Library
19


555 North Franklin Street


Kroger shopping area
9


375 Arbor Drive


NRV Superbowl
18


3rd Street


Residential area near West Main/South Franklin/I-81
10


555 North Franklin Street


Kroger shopping area
17


4120 Roanoke Street


Citgo gas station/Deli Mart


125 Sheltman Street


Christiansburg Library


Brown Street


Residential area near Cambria


Reading Rd - Residence


(Residential area behind Mont. Cty Govt Ctr)


TOP 10 ORIGINS


1 April - 30 April 2012


TOP 10 DESTINATIONS


1 April - 30 April 2012


7


6 22


21


5


3


1810


9


8


7


20


21


23


28


19


 


 


Unscheduled Trips 
April data:  43 unscheduled same day trips.  The trip purpose continues to mimic that of the 


trips that are scheduled with “Employment” being the number one purpose.  As noted earlier in 


this report additional slots are reservations will be added to 7 and 8 a.m., Monday through 


Friday effective July 1.   


 


What is an Unshcheduled Trip? 


Unscheduled Trips are when a customer calls to schedule a trip, but the request cannot be 


accommodated, e.g. that time is already booked.   


 


 


 


  
“This bus keeps me from paying a lot of money to get people to 


take me to work.  Thank you.” 


 Kaitlyn, Go Anywhere passenger 







Christiansburg Monthly Report 


 


New Customers 
18 more customers signed up to use 


the Go Anywhere service in March


bringing the total passengers signed 


up (since November 2009) to 1,271


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BT Commuter Service 
Ridership on the Commuter Route 


 


 


Report on March 2012 


more customers signed up to use 


March, 


bringing the total passengers signed 


p (since November 2009) to 1,271. 


oute continues to do well. 


Month
Number of New 


Passengers Added
Nov '09 - June '11 (19.2 months)


July, 2011


August, 2011


September, 2011


October, 2011


November, 2011


December, 2011


January, 2012


February, 2012


March, 2012


April, 2012


Total 


Average/Month


Unique New Passengers - Go Anywhere Route


Page 6 


 


Number of New 
Passengers Added


950


58


54


47


36


23


14


26


15


18


30


1271


43.53


Unique New Passengers - Go Anywhere Route








 
     Town of Christiansburg, Virginia 24073                    
              100 East Main Street ~ Telephone 540-382-6128 ~ Engineering Fax 540-381-7238 
  
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
ESTABLISHED   
NOVEMBER 10, 1792 
 
INCORPORATED 
JANUARY 7, 1833 
 


MAYOR 


   RICHARD G. BALLENGEE 


 


COUNCIL MEMBERS 


   D. MICHAEL BARBER 


   R. CORD HALL 


   STEVE HUPPERT 


   HENRY SHOWALTER        


   BRADFORD J. “BRAD” STIPES  


   JAMES W. “JIM” VANHOOZIER  


    


TOWN MANAGER 


   BARRY D. HELMS 


 


ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER 


   RANDY S. WINGFIELD 


    


DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE/TOWN TREASURER 


   VALERIE L. TWEEDIE 


 


CLERK OF COUNCIL 


   MICHELE M. STIPES 


 


TOWN ATTORNEY 


   GUYNN, MEMMER &  


 DILLON, P.C.     


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Town of Christiansburg 
Planning Staff Report 


 
 
Planning Commission Public Hearing Date:  Monday, May 21, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
Town Council Public Hearing Date:  Tuesday, June 19, 2012 at 7:30 p.m. 
Application Type:  CUP Request 
Applicant: Carl McNeil 
Location: intersection of Depot Street NE and Harless Street NE (former tax parce3l 497 
– ((A)) – 288; Lots 1-3 in recently approved “Plat Showing Harless Corner) 
 
The Town of Christiansburg has received a Conditional Use Permit request by Carl 
McNeil for a planned housing development at the intersection of Depot Street NE and 
Harless Street NE (former tax parcel 497 – ((A)) – 288; Lots 1-3 in recently approved 
“Plat Showing Harless Corner”) in the B-3 General Business District. 
 
The property does not lie within the 100-Year and 500-Year Flood Hazard Areas.  The 
property does not lie within a Historic District. The adjoining properties are zoned B-3 
General Business and I-1 Limited Industrial. The adjoining properties contain the Rosa 
Peters Park, the Depot Street Park, vacant property and residences.  The property 
contains 3 lots.  Lot 1 contains approximately 0.138 acres.  Lot 2 contains approximately 
0.115 acres.  Lot 3 contains approximately 0.120 acres. 
 







TAX MAP # OWNER (S) MAILING ADDRESS CITY, ST, ZIP


CUP: DEPOT ST NE & HARLESS ST NE - MCNEIL 2012


497-   A280 CHILDRENS PLAYGROUND FOR NEGRO CHILDREN OF CBURG VA


497-   A286 CAMPBELL GEORGE W C/O FANNIE MAE CAMPBELL 335 DEPOT ST NE CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24073


497-   A288 MCNEIL CARL N P O BOX 6127 CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24068


497-   A287 ELDER VIVIAN ANN HANSON WYNN BRENDA JOYCE HANSON ETAL 372 WOODHAVEN DR VACAVILLE CA  95687


497-  13 17,18 PONTONE MICHAEL E PONTONE CAROLE E 304 E MAIN ST CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24073


497-  13 15,16 PONTONE MICHAEL E PONTONE CAROLE G 304 E MAIN ST CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24073


497-  13 15,16 PONTONE MICHAEL E PONTONE CAROLE G 304 E MAIN ST CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24073


497-  13 14 HUNGATE PEGGY L 445 NORTH HARLESS ST CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24073


497-  13 13 HOPKINS JOHN HOPKINS CHRISTINE 465 N HARLESS ST CHRISTIANSBURG VA  24073


497-  13 12 WILLIAMS BILLY H JR 349 JORDAN ST DUBLIN VA  24084 3360







DEP
OT S


T


STONE ST


SCHOOL LN


MILL LN


HARLESS ST


NORTH DR


VIN
E S


T


HIL
L S


T


JOHNSTON ST


HIGH ST


SUNNYSIDE LN


WATE
R ST


WEST ST


SOUTH ST


COLHOUN ST


WI
NG


 ST


STONE ST


³


PC: MAY 21, 2012
CUP: DEPOT ST NE & HARLESS ST NE


TC: JUNE 19, 2012


0 100 200 300
Feet


Legend
497-((A))-288


Flood Hazard Area
100-YEAR


500-YEAR


Tax Parcel
497 - ((A)) - 288







DEP
OT S


T N
E


STONE ST NE


SCHOOL LN NE


MILL LN NE


HARLESS ST NE


NORTH DR NE


HIGH ST NE


JOHNSTON ST NE


VIN
E S


T N
E


SUNNYSIDE LN NE


HIL
L S


T N
E


WATER ST N
E


WEST ST NE


SOUTH ST NE


COLHOUN ST NE


WI
NG


 ST
 N


E
³


0 200 400 600
Feet


TAX PARCEL
497 - ((A)) - 288


B-3


B-3


B-3


B-3


B-3


A
I-1


I-1


R-3


R-3


R-3


R-3


R-3


Rosa Peters Park


residences


R-3


residencesDepot Street Park


PC: MAY 21, 2012
CUP: Depot Street NE & Harless Street NE


TC:JUNE 19, 2012


vacant



















 


 


Resolution of the Town of Christiansburg Planning Commission 
 


Conditional Use Permit Application 
 


 WHEREAS the Christiansburg Planning Commission, acting upon a request by the Christiansburg 
Town Council to study a request made by Carl McNeil for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for property 
located at the intersection of Depot Street, N.E. and Harless Street (former tax parcel 497 – ((A)) – 288; 
Lots 1-3 in the recently approved “Plat Showing Harless Corner”) for a planned housing development in 
the B-3 General Business District, has found following a duly advertised public hearing that the public 
necessity, convenience, general welfare and good zoning practices (permit / do not permit) the issuance of 
a CUP to Carl McNeil for property located for property located at the intersection of Depot Street, N.E. 
and Harless Street (former tax parcel 497 – ((A)) – 288; Lots 1-3 in the recently approved “Plat Showing 
Harless Corner”)  for a planned housing development in the B-3 General Business District. 
 THEREFORE be it resolved that the Christiansburg Planning Commission (recommends / does not 
recommend) that the Christiansburg Town Council approve the Conditional Use Permit with the following 
condition(s): 
 


1. The presented conditions, with only the front setback varying (from all street right-of-ways 
including corner lots) to be 18 feet rather than 30 feet, are considered conditions of approval. 


2. The minimum lot area shall be 5,150 square feet and the minimum street frontage shall be 80 feet at 
the street line and setback line. 


3. The development will consist of single-family homes only. 
4. A stormwater and erosion and sediment control plan and grading plan shall be submitted by the 


applicant and approved by the Town prior to commencement of any land disturbing activities and 
drainage easements may be required by the Town. 


5. Sidewalks shall be extended the radius of Harless Street to the satisfaction of the Town Manager or 
Town Engineer. 


 


Dated this the 11th day of June 2012. 
           __________________________________ 
       Craig Moore, Chairperson 
       Christiansburg Planning Commission 
 


The above Resolution was adopted on motion by Dorsett seconded by Parsons at a meeting of the Planning 
Commission following the posting of a public hearing notice upon the property and a duly advertised public 
hearing on the above request on May 21, 2012.  Upon a call for an aye and nay vote on the foregoing 
resolution, the Commission members present throughout all deliberations on the foregoing and voting or 
abstaining, stood as indicated opposite their names as follows: 
 


 MEMBERS AYES NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
 


 Barry Akers  X 
 


 Ann H. Carter  X 
  


 Harry Collins    X 
 


 M. H. Dorsett, AICP  X 


 


 Steve Huppert    X 
 


 Craig Moore, Chairperson    X 
 


 Ashley Parsons    X 
 


 Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson  X 
 


 Jennifer D. Sowers  X 
 


____________________________ ______________________________ 







 Depot Street NE & Harless Street C. U. P. application  pg. 2 
 


 


Craig Moore, Chairperson                Randy Wingfield, Secretary Non-voting 

















		Harless Street NE & Depot Street NE - CUP - staff report

		Harless Street NE & Depot Street NE - CUP - adjoining property owners

		Harless Street NE & Depot Street NE - CUP - aerial map

		Harless Street NE & Depot Street NE - CUP - zoning map

		Harless Street NE - Depot Street NE - McNeil - 2012 developer proposed conditions

		Harless Street NE - Depot Street NE - McNeil - 2012 drawing

		Harless Street NE - Depot Street NE - McNeil - 2012 Planning Commission Resolution

		Harless Street NE - Depot Street NE - McNeil - 2012 rendering and floor plan

		Harless Street NE & Depot Street NE - concept map






Re: Request to freeze step increases for new hires, effective July 1, 2012 
 
 
As Town staff gears up to begin studying the potential of implementing an altered or new compensation 
plan, we believe it is appropriate to place a moratorium on step increases for new employees who are 
hired on or after July 1, 2012.  Under this proposal, employees hired on or after July 1, 2012, will be 
given a starting salary and will be entitled to any cost of living increases that are granted to all 
employees, but they will not be eligible to receive step increases while compensation programs are 
being studied.  Whether the Town ultimately decides to keep the present step increase system or 
implement a different compensation plan, employees hired during the moratorium would then be fully 
eligible to receive applicable increases under the Town’s compensation program.   
 
All employees hired prior to July 1, 2012, would be grandfathered into the present step increase 
program.  Eligible employees would continue to receive all applicable step increases and cost of living 
allowances while compensation programs are being studied.    
 
We believe this is an effective means of continuing to meet the obligations that have been made to 
current employees without further obligating ourselves to future employees while we determine the 
best course of action related to employee compensation.  This will provide an opportunity to thoroughly 
and objectively evaluate the pros and cons of our present system, as well as the potential benefits and 
costs associated with converting to an alternative compensation program.   
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration of this request.      
 
 


























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































